

TRIBHUVAN UNIVERSITY INSTITUTE OF ENGINEERING PULCHOWK CAMPUS

Engineering carbon and nitrogen intermingled three dimensional porous cobalt oxide polyhedrons/nanowires for energy storage

By

Bishal G.C.

A THESIS

SUBMITTED TO THE DEPARTMENT OF APPLIED SCIENCES AND CHEMICAL ENGINEERING IN PARTIAL FULFILLMENT OF THE REQUIREMENTS FOR THE DEGREE OF MASTER IN MATERIAL SCIENCE AND ENGINEERING

DEPARTMENT OF APPLIED SCIENCE AND CHEMICAL ENGINEERING LALITPUR, NEPAL

SEPTEMBER, 2022

COPYRIGHT

The author has given permission for this thesis to be made publicly available for inspection by the library, Department of Applied Sciences and Chemical Engineering, Pulchowk Campus, Institute of Engineering. Additionally, the author has consented that the professor(s) who reviewed the work documented herein, or, in their absence, the Head of the Department where the thesis was done, may grant permission for substantial copying of this thesis for scholarly purposes. It is agreed that credit will be provided to the thesis' author and the Department of Applied Science and Chemical Engineering at the Institute of Engineering's Pulchowk Campus for any usage of the thesis' content. It is forbidden to copy, publish, or use this thesis in any other way for profit without the department of Applied Sciences and Chemical Engineering, Pulchowk Campus, Institute of Engineering, and the author's written consent. Please contact the following if you would like to duplicate or otherwise utilize any of the content in this thesis, in whole or in part:

Head of Department Department of Applied Sciences and Chemical Engineering Pulchowk Campus Pulchowk, Lalitpur Nepal

TRIBHUVAN UNIVERSITY INSTITUTE OF ENGINEERING, PULCHOWK CAMPUS DEPARTMENT OF APPLIED SCIENCE AND CHEMICAL ENGINEERING

The undersigned certify that they have read, and recommended to the Institute of Engineering for acceptance, a thesis entitled " Engineering carbon and nitrogen intermingled three dimensional porous cobalt oxide polyhedrons/nanowires for energy storage" submitted by Bishal G.C., 074MSMSE018 in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of Masters in Materials Science and Engineering.

Supervisor, Dr. Tanka Mukhiya Assistant Professor, Bhaktapur Multiple Campus

External Examiner, Prof. Dr. Rajeshwor Man Shrestha Professor, Department of Applied Science and Chemical Engineering

Date: 9/11/2022

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

It gives me great pleasure to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to my M.Sc. supervisor **Assistant Prof. Dr. Tanka Mukhiya** for his essential advice, supportive words, constant availability and study and investigation. Only his constant encouragement has kept me working on this thesis' research and writing.

In addition to my supervisor, I would like to thank **Prof. Dr. Hem Raj Pant**, Head of Department, Department of Applied Science and Chemical Engineering, for his ongoing inspiration and support. I would also like to thank Tribhuvan University's Central Campus, Institute of Engineering and all of its faculty members for their tremendous assistance in completing this MSc's thesis research project.

I would also like to express my profound gratitude to **Prof. Dr. Sahira Joshi**, program coordinator for the IOE's Department of Material Science and Engineering. I would also like to express my gratitude to the IOE administration for giving all the facilities required to complete the thesis work. I'm also thankful to **Prakash Chandra Lohani** Doctoral researcher, Jeonbuk National University, Republic of Korea, for his support.

Last but not least, I want to express my gratitude to my parents and my dear wife Reshma, for their encouragements and also would like to thanks our colleagues and the department's technical personnel for providing unreserved support whenever needed.

ABSTRACT

There is great demand in the development of efficient and economic energy storage devices to address the environmental and exhausting issues of fossil fuel. Supercapacitor, a promising energy storage technology for future generation, demands enormous improvement in its electrode such high specific surface area, high porosity, conductivity and proper architecture. Among various materials, cobalt oxide (Co_3O_4) has high capacitance but less stability and conductivity. Recently, metal-organic frameworks (MOFs) have been used to enhance the surface area and controllable porosity. However, there is still a challenge to design and synthesize assembly of nanostructure with proper architecture. Here, MOFs-based carbon and nitrogen intermingled highly porous three dimensional (3D) cobalt oxide polyhedrons have been assembled with their nanowires on nickel foam by a combination of hydrothermal, solution, carbonization and calcinations method. Here, MOFs ensured high surface area, high porosity and also contribute carbon and nitrogen required for enhancing conductivity of cobalt oxide. In this study, electrode material in a new architecture has been synthesized through the route of MOFs by simple laboratory methods. The materials have been characterized by X-ray diffraction (XRD), scanning electron microscopy (SEM), field emission scanning electron microscopy (FESEM), elemental mapping, energy dispersive spectroscopy (EDS). The electrochemical test shows the material is promising for its use as SCs electrode material.

Key words: Cobalt oxide, Metal-organic framework, Energy storage, Supercapacitor

Table of Contents

COPYRIGHT II					
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS IV					
ABSTRACTV					
TABLE OF	CONTENTS				
LIST OF T	ABLES 2				
LIST OF F	IGURES				
ABBREBIATION					
CHAPTER	ONE: INTRODUCTION 6				
1.1	BACKGROUND				
1.2	SUPERCAPACITOR (SC)				
1.3	MATERIALS USED IN SC ELECTRODE				
1.3.1	CARBON NANOMATERIALS				
1.3.2	CONDUCTING POLYMERS				
1.3.3	TRANSITION METAL COMPOUNDS				
1.3.4	NANOCOMPOSITES				
1.3.5	METAL-ORGANIC FRAMEWORK (MOFs)				
1.4	HYDROTHERMAL PROCESS				
1.5	CARBONIZATION				
1.6	PROBLEM STATEMENT				
1.7	RESEARCH OBJECTIVES				
1.8	RATIONALE				
1.9	SCOPE OF THIS WORK				
1.10	LIMITATION				
CHAPTER	TWO: LITERATURE REVIEW				
2.1 Res	SEARCH GAPS AND LITERATURE REVIEW				
CHAPTER	THREE: RESEARCH METHODOLOGY 34				
3.1	METHODOLOGY				
3.2	MATERIALS				
3.3	METHODS				
3.4	SYNTHESIS OF COBALT HYDROXIDE CARBONATE (CHC)				
3.5	SYNTHESIS OF METAL ORGANIC FRAMEWORK (MOF)				
3.6	CARBONIZATION AND CALCINATION				
3.7	ELECTROCHEMICAL TEST				
3.8	X RAY DIFFRACTION (XRD) ANALYSIS TECHNIQUE				
3.9	ENERGY DISPERSIVE SPECTROSCOPY				
3.10	MATERIAL CHARACTERIZATION				
CHAPTER FOUR: RESULTS AND DISCUSSION					
CHAPTER	FIVE: CONCLUSIONS				
REFERENCES					

LIST OF TABLES

Table 1 ED	output result	7
------------	---------------	---

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1 Comparison between different energy storage devices	.9
Figure 2 SCs internal schematic structure	10
Figure 3 Schematic process diagram of lab work	37
Figure 4 (a) Autoclave after HTC containing solution (b)Pink colored solution taken after HTC	38
Figure 5 Synthesis of MOF on nanowire deposited on nickel foam	39
Figure 6 (a) 1D cobalt hydroxide carbonate on Ni foam (b) 1D cobalt hydroxide carbonate with MOF polyhedrons on Ni foam (c) $CN-Co_3O_4$ on Ni and (d) a portion of (c) showing hig porosity	;h 45
Figure 7 Elemental mapping of CN-Co ₃ O ₄ on Ni	46
Figure 8 Energy Dispersive X-ray spectroscopy (EDS) of CN-Co ₃ O ₄ on Ni	46
Figure 9 XRD pattern of 1D/3D CN-Co ₃ O ₄ @Ni	48
Figure 10 CV curve of CN-Co ₃ O ₄ on Ni ²	49
Figure 11 GCD curve of CN-Co ₃ O ₄ @Ni	50

ABBREBIATION

SC	Supercapacitor
ТМС	Transition Metal Compounds
CVD	Chemical Vapour Deposition
MOF	Metal Organic Framework
ZIF	Zeolitic Imidazolate Framework
NP	Nanoparticles
EDLC	Electrical Double Layer Capacitor
X-RD	X- Ray Diffraction
СНС	Cobalt Hydroxide Carbonate
EDS	Energy Dispersive Spectroscopy
LIB	Lithium ion Battery
CNT	Carbon Nanotube
SWNT	Single Walled Nanotube
MWNT	Multi Walled Nanotube
MEA	Membrane Electrode Assembly

HTCHydrothermal CarbonizationCVCyclic VoltammetryGCDGalvano Static Charge DischargeMSMetal Sulphide

CHAPTER ONE: INTRODUCTION

1.1 Background

Energy is necessary in everyday activities such as in IT and telecommunication, learning and in infrastructure development. It is essential for portable electronics, electrical vehicles as well as for life sustaining pacemaker (Haeberlin et al., 2014; Hasan, Mahmud, Ahasan Habib, Motakabber, & Islam, 2021). Fossil fuels such as coal and petroleum are primary sources of current energy sources. (Logan et al., 2020). But fossil fuels are limited and will exhaust soon. Moreover, they emit CO₂ which is responsible for global warming (Pasquini, 2022) (Florides & Christodoulides, 2009). For future use alternative, renewable and clean sources of energy has being developed such as bioenergy, hydrogen energy, solar energy, hydroelectricity and nuclear energy (Simanjuntak, Al-attab, Daryanto, Tambunan, & Sciences, 2022). Advantages of using renewable energies against the fossil fuel energies are low CO₂ production, low sulphur dioxide production and also renewable energy source reduces nitrogen oxide production. Along with these benefits renewable energies are economically feasible and are being run with the sources which are highly available in the nature (H.-r. Zhao, Guo, Fu, & Reviews, 2014). Energy obtained from renewable sources are intermittent and fluctuating. Mostly the energy is used in the residential, industrialization and urbanization purposes. According to (Nejat, Jomehzadeh, Taheri, Gohari, & Abd. Majid, 2015) top ten countries including India, US, Iran, Japan, Canada, UK, Germany, South Korea, Russia and China are responsible for two-third of the global CO_2 emission. Also residential area represents for the 27 % and 17 % of the global energy consumption and CO₂ emission respectively (Nejat et al., 2015). From industrial and urbanization point of view, as these two major developments increases the per capita and GDP of the country but this can only be achieved by exchanging the development with the available fossil fuels consumption (Sadorsky, 2014). (Gómez-Castro & Gutiérrez-Antonio, 2022) investigated that the increase in CO₂ emission was by 87 % from the year 1978 to 2018. Full dependence on fossils fuel is not a wise practice as the global distribution

of these fuels depends on international trades laws along with many international diplomacy and the war existing in between big countries of fuel production (W. Zhong et al., 2017). The fossils fuels are deteriorating the environment thus, human civilization need to switch to the renewable energy source and we already discussed renewable energy sources are not available all the periods of time (Owusu & Asumadu-Sarkodie, 2016). Hence, energy has to be stored for its use when needed (Goodenough, 2015). Currently, two types of energy storage technology are in use mostly batteries and SCs (S. Liu, Wei, & Wang, 2020). Recently, the development of energy storage technique is being going on with proper recent and developments. Toward battery as energy storage device, Li ion battery has been proved as the most promising battery in comparison with the other conventional batteries. Li ion battery has light weight for the same power storage capacity than conventional batteries causing low cost in shipping and low space in installation (Xinghui Zhang, Li, Luo, Fan, & Du, 2022). It has high energy density. Hence, it is used mostly in the electric vehicles and solar photovoltaic energy harvesting (Trahey et al., 2020). According to certain scientific reports, the availability of fossil fuels (coal, oil) would persist for a maximum of 190 years and 290 years in the case of natural gases, respectively. Despite the fact that fossil fuels exist, renewable energy has only provided up to 16 % of the world's energy up until this point. However, the usage of renewable energy is rising steadily (Månberger, 2021).

Besides the advantages of the renewable energies there are some disadvantages as well. While fully depending on renewable resources that itself also depends on weather conditions makes long chain of dependency (Maradin, 2021). In case of no solar day, no wind day and also no tides day the electricity generation from their respective prime movers may become zero, in such cases renewable energy sources lack consumer/public interest. Efficiency of the renewable energy is less than that of the fossils fuel energy (Akram, Chen, Khalid, Huang, & Irfan, 2021). Data shows that the efficiency of solar cells is in between (15-20) % and the natural gas or coal efficiency reaches up to (40-60) % but with increase in efficiency the outcome of fossils fuel does emission of carbon and other greenhouse gases (Fathi, Ashena, Bahari, & Consumption, 2021). During harness of renewable energy the whole energy

harness setup need to be large enough i.e the surface area/ renewable energy catchment areas must be large (Młyński, Operacz, & Wałęga, 2020). Without any subsidy from the government or public sector sides the initial cost of renewable energy source is high that cannot be affordable by the normal people of the related country ("What are the Pros and Cons of Renewable Energy," 2021).

1.2 Supercapacitor (SC)

A typical capacitor (originally known as condenser) is a passive two-terminal electrical component used to store energy in an electric field. SCs are such type of energy storing material which are broadly investigated nowadays in the world's research and development perspectives. SCs can replace the conventional capacitor and also the batteries as well, if a good SC with high energy density on addition to its high power density capability is investigated (Q. Lu et al., 2011). According to (Obreja, 2008) a EDLC SC has capacitance up to thousands farads in comparison to same size of conventional capacitor and also the specific energy of the market available SCs is from 5-6 Wh kg⁻¹ while market available batteries have specific energy of lower limit from 35-40 Wh kg⁻¹. These energy storage system also will replace the fossil fuel consumption and can fully depend on renewable energy resources (Halper & Ellenbogen, 2006). Comparisons of various energy storages devices on the basis of power and energy densities can be understood by the figure 2. Here, SC has high power density among other storage devices like battery and fuel cells. But on the basis of energy density variations, SCs energy density is less than the other storage devices. Thus on the aspect of power density SC is superior but in energy density fields battery and fuel cell have high selections (Riaz, Sarker, Saad, & Mohamed, 2021). On basis of energy and power densities various energy storage devices are classified in figure 1.



Energy Density (Wh/kg)

Figure 1 Comparison between different energy storage devices

SCs have energy densities greater than the conventional capacitors and the power density lower than the batteries (Halper & Ellenbogen, 2006). While comparing, a typical electrolytic capacitor will have a capacitance in the range of tens of milli farads. The same size super capacitor would have a capacitance of several farads, an improvement of about two or three orders of magnitude in capacitance but usually at a lower working voltage (Lokhande, Chavan, & Pandey, 2020). A general EDLC SC internal architecture is represented in figure 2.



Figure 2 SCs internal schematic structure

Based upon the working parameters and internal reactions mechanisms, SCs can be divided into three types electrochemical double layer capacitors (EDLC), pseudo capacitors and hybrid capacitors. Faradic, non- faradic and combination of these two types of chemical reactions are the reactions that occurs internally in different types of SCs (Reece, Lekakou, Smith, & interfaces, 2020). In faradic process, oxidation and reduction reaction occurs where charge transfer in between electrode and electrolyte takes place. But no chemical reaction occurs in non faradic mechanism ie in EDLC SCs. In non faradic process only concentration of charges occurs physically near to the electrode where no chemical bonds get affected (Laheäär, Przygocki, Abbas, & Béguin, 2015).

SCs have attractive features such as fast charging, long life span and high power density(Wang, Wu, Han, & Li, 2021). However, low energy storing capacity per unit mass, volume and surface area is a major problem. Discovering a proper electrode material in proper architecture is a key issue for addressing this obstacle. Energy storing capacity of materials is proportional to its surface area, therefore, high specific

surface area hence nano size is highly favorable to be a electrode material. Electrode requires high conductivity, high porosity and proper nanostructures. Electrodes transfer energy to and from the electrolyte through faradaic or non faradaic reaction to power the polarized device to which they connect (RICHARD, 2016). The materials studied for SCs electrode falls into carbon nanomaterials, transition metal compounds, conducting polymers and their nano composites (Najib & Erdem, 2019).

1.3 Materials used in SC electrode

1.3.1 Carbon Nanomaterials

Carbon based nanomaterials have been used as electrode materials for SCs. They include graphene carbon nanotube, carbon nanofibers, activated carbon, etc. (Azwar et al., 2018; Bokhari et al., 2020; Z. Yang et al., 2019). Carbon based materials have high chemical stability, very light, environmentally friendly, but the energy storage capacity is low (T. Chen & Dai, 2013). Carbon obtained from the organic wastes are taken to make activated carbon. The organic wastes like groundnut cells, coconut shells, walnut shells sugarcane bagasse etc. are taken and process until to get fine power. The fine powder are then taken for physical and chemical activation. Out of the many available reagents for chemical activation (ZnCl₂, H₃PO₄, AlCl₃, MgCl₂, KOH, NaOH, etc.), the most common chemical agents are ZnCl₂, H₃PO₄, and KOH, ZnCl₂ and H₃PO₄ act as dehydrating agents whereas KOH acts as an oxidant (Gao, Yue, Gao, & Li, 2020). Chemical activation has some benefits over the physical activation like i) it is usually carried out in a single step (lower time) ii) it has lower activation temperature iii) in chemical activation high level of carbon is produced iv) high surface area (up to $3600 \text{ m}^2 \text{ g}^{-1}$) v) micro porosity is well developed with a well controlled distribution (Chikri, Elhadiri, Benchanaa, & El Maguana, 2020).

Given its high specific surface area, electrical conductivity, and chemical stability, carbon nanotube (CNT) SC electrodes have attracted a lot of attention in the last ten years (W. Lu & Dai, 2010). CNT-based electrodes can be further functionalized with substances like conducting polymers, metallophthalocyanines, or metal oxides (such as oxides of ruthenium, manganese, nickel, and zinc) that add a faradaic (charge

transfer) component to the capacitor known as pseudocapacitance in addition to the electrochemical double-layer capacitance that CNTs provide. The performance characteristics of the electrode can be significantly enhanced with only a small amount of pseudocapacitive material (Fisher, Watt, & Jud Ready, 2013).

The first CNT material type that was explored for SC applications was randomly entangled CNTs because of its relatively simple production. CNTs have a moderate specific surface area when compared to activated carbons with a high surface area (Dai, 2010). It is found that higher capacitance has been demonstrated for CNTs, such as in study of Multi walled nano tubes (MWNTs), it has capacitance of 102 F g⁻¹ (Niu, Sichel, Hoch, Moy, & Tennent, 1997) and in single walled nano tubes (SWNTs) it shows capacitance of 180 F g⁻¹ (An et al., 2001) but while comparing with activated carbon, activated carbon has capacitance of only tens of F g^{-1} . It is generally acknowledged that CNTs have a special mesoporosity (the existence of a large population of mesopores) caused by tube entanglement, which leads to high electrolyte accessibility and high capacitance. Activated carbons have less mesoporosity than the carbon nanotubes which is also a strong reason behind having less capacitance than CNTs. As CNTs have high capacitance so these are used for making the SC's electrode. A SC electrode developed from a SWNT and KOH electrolyte shows a good power density of 20 kw kg⁻¹ and energy density of 10 Wh kg⁻¹ (An et al., 2001).

Another carbon nanomaterial- graphene is also been used for the preparation of electrode of SCs. Graphene is the monolayer of graphite and the graphene oxide is the multilayer of graphite that can be prepared through various techniques. Graphene shows high electrical conductivity, good chemical stability, tunable surface area and good mechanical strength; these all characteristics are best for the electrode's working purposes (Q. Ke & Wang, 2016). Research into graphene-based materials as a conducting network to enable the redox processes of transition metal oxides, hydroxides, and conducting polymers has been widespread. Because of the synergistic effect, these nanohybrid electrodes made of graphene and nanoparticles of transition

metal oxides or hydroxides or conductive polymers result in effective electrochemical performance. Graphene layers help metal oxide or hydroxide nanoparticles evenly distribute and represent as a highly conductive matrix to increase electrical conductivity. Metal oxide or hydroxide or conducting polymers provide the desired pseudocapacitance (Q. Ke & Wang, 2016).

1.3.2 Conducting polymers

SC can be divided into two categories on the basis of charging of discharging mechanism, first type is electric double layer stage capacitor which is based primarily on high surface area carbon material, that uses electrodes/electrolytes to separate charges to produce capacitor. Second type is pseudo-capacitance, which is mainly composed of transition metal oxide and conductive polymer and it is generated by rapid reversible REDOX reaction on the surface of electrode (D Y Su, 2019).

Conducting polymer has several tunable characteristics for energy conversion and energy storage. Using conducting polymer efficient, reliable, low cost, conducting, stable and environment friendly energy system have been developed. Design, structure, composition and fabrication technique used for conducting polymer need to be focused to increase the commercialization and efficiency of SC/energy storage medium. Except in the SC, conducting polymer are also used in electrochemical devices like battery and fuel cells (Kausar, 2017).

Conducting polymer has drawn attention due to their useful mechanical, optical and electronic properties. They are used in electrostatic material, conducting adhesives, electromagnetic shielding against electromagnetic interference (EMI), artificial nerves, aircraft structures, diodes and transistors (Das & Prusty, 2012).

Conductive polymer is used as the electrode of SC. Due to the different doping forms of conducting polymers and different kinds of doped conducting polymers capacitor, SCs electrode can be made for different chemical, electrical and mechanical priorities. As shown in figure below, there are different types of conducting polymer SCs. First one of type I is composed of completely identical p type doped conductive polymer. The charge quantity released by this type I conductive polymer electrode is ¹/₂ and the difference of potential difference in between two poles is small. Similarly, the second

type II conductive polymer which is made from different types of conductive polymers are doped with p type doping in both. Due to this different types of conductive polymer electrodes, the potential range of dopings are different so that the capacitor can have the higher voltage difference in the fully charged state. It has found that this type II kind of SC is not good enough to distinguish between the positive and negative and the capacitor cannot be reverse charge which then limits its application and shows impact on the life cycle of capacitors.

The last type III is composed of an n type doped electrode and a doped p type. In the fully charged state, the cathode of the capacitor is in completely n doped state while the positive electrode is in a fully p doped state, increase the voltage difference between the two electrodes. The main advantage of such a capacitor structure is the capacitive voltage is higher, charge release completely and charging two electrodes were incorporated, charge storage capacity. In addition, electron material holds high conductivity, small internal resistance of the capacitor and output power of large due to the two electrodes simultaneous doping.

In summary we can understand that with their quick doping and doping capabilities, charge-discharge kinetics, tunable morphological features, good mechanical strength, large specific capacitance, ease of fabrication and environment friendliness conducting polymers have been examined as one of the most favorable electrode materials (Dědek et al., 2022). Together, these features make conduction polymers an good electrode material (Kar, 2020). For the most part, polyaniline, polypyrrole, and polythiophene are used as electrode materials. Along with this, hybridization of conducting polymer with the MOFs give a new perspective to increase the electrochemical characteristic of the formed electrode (Dědek et al., 2022).

14

1.3.3 Transition metal compounds

Pseudocapacitor, a variety of SC, uses the transition metal compounds (TMCs) as the electrode material. In pseudocapacitors faradaic reactions take place where the electrons are adsorbed at or near the surface of the electrode through the electrolytes. Just like in a battery rapid and reversible faraday reactions take place in pseudo capacitor (R. Liu et al., 2021). The electrode, for undergoing these reactions, are made up of transition metal compounds and conductive polymers. During the intercalation pseudo capacitance involves the insertion of electrolyte ions into the voids or layers in active electrode materials along with a charge transfer process(R. Liu et al., 2021). Pseudocapacitive materials (TMC) like Nb₂O₅, MoO₃, TiO₂, WO₃, V₂O₅ etc. are capable of storing charge by pseudocapacitance so these materials can be used/fabricated as the electrode of pseudocapacitor (R. Liu et al., 2021). Because of their reported beneficial mechanical, structural or electronic properties as well as the high pseudocapacitances. Leading to the contribution of their multiple valence state changes, which are usually impossible with carbon materials, transition metal oxides are of great interest in the field of energy storage or conversion. Generally, transition metal oxides can be divided into two types as base transition metal oxide and noble metal oxides. Noble metal oxides includes RuO₂, IrO₂, etc. while base transition metal oxides for SCs are developing from monometallic oxides (like, NiO, CO₃O₄, Fe₃O₄ and Mn₃O₄) to single phase bimetallic oxides (like NiCO2O4, MnCO2O4, NiMoO4, NiFe2O4, CoMn2O4)(Cui & Meng, 2020).

Out of other transition metal oxides, CO_3O_4 has excellent reversible redox behavior, high conductivity and good stability for SCs. CO_3O_4 nanostructures have been produced using a variety of methods, with morphologies varying from one to three dimensions. These approaches typically include two steps: precursor formation and calcination. A significant amount of effort has been put into the improvement of electrochemical performance of CO_3O_4 by constructing various morphologies and combining with other materials (Wu, Zhu, Ji, & Banks, 2016). Its unique porous structure and hollow structure are what give it the better capacitive performance, which could speed ion and electron mobility, adequate strain tolerance and big surface area for reactions (Ma et al., 2021).

Besides the transition metal compounds (TMCs), metal sulfides are also used as the electrode material of the SC. Generally, there are two types of metal sulfides- layered metal sulfides and non-layered metal sulfides. Layered metal sulfides like MoS₂, WS₂, SnS₂, VS₂ and so on are arranged of three atom layer (S-M-S) connected by covalent bonds where the individual layers are held together through Van der Waals forces, whereas non layered MSs such as FeS₂, NiS₂, CoS₂, MnS and others have attracted researchers owing to their availability, low cost, eco friendliness and high theoretical capacity (Salele Iro, 2016). Due to the presence of sulphur, which makes it easier for electrons to transport, metal sulphides (MSs) or mixed MSs that are produced in redox reactions are known to have better electrical conductivity and flexibility than other frequently used materials like MOs and carbon materials (Barik & Ingole, 2020).

N-type semiconductors, which have both metalloid properties and good electric conductivity, are known to contain a number of metal phosphides (MPs). Moreover, they have a great abundance and an environmentally friendly nature. Therefore, a few of these metal phosphides make good candidates for use as electrode materials. They are kinetically more advantageous than transition metal oxides or hydroxides for the quick electron transport needed for high power density (Xin Li, Elshahawy, Guan, & Wang, 2017). Theoretically, transition metal phosphides, including those made of nickel and cobalt, have a significant energy storage capacity due to their strong redox activity and ideal electrical conductivity. They are abundant naturally and environmentally favorable. As a result, they attracted a lot of attention as a group of pseudocapacitive materials. Aluminium phosphide, Potassium phosphide sodium phosphide, zinc phosphide, calcium phosphide, magnesium phosphide, strontium phosphide, which are being studied for electrode material (Pu et al.,

2020).

1.3.4 Nanocomposites

It is always important to keep in mind that the electrodes material and its contents elements are selected depending upon the electrical conductivity, stability, multiple oxidation number, high surface area and porosity and also superior electrochemical activity. Added advantage by using nanocomposites for SCs electrode is nanocomposite gives high specific surface area, shorter ion/electron diffusion paths eventually improving the specific capacitance of SCs (Ghuman, 2020). The nanocomposites offer larger SSA, shorter ion/electron diffusion paths, thus improving the specific capacitance of SCs.

Nanocomposites are materials which consist of distinct part of different materials in nanoscale level. So different materials composite will improve the mechanical properties like strength, flexural strength, hardness and toughness, thermal stability, elongation and stiffness as per the requirement in the final developed material. This, then formed composite will have reduced weight and the composite will be usable for various application. For easy understanding, nano-composites are materials with one bulk phase and other small nanoscale particles distributed in that bulk phase, which are utilized to enhance the bulk phase's characteristics (Ghuman, 2020). By controlling the nanoparticles we can control various parameters of the materials like its physical, mechanical, chemical, biological, melting temperature, thermal stability, magnetic and chemical properties including others qualities like, color, electronic and electrical characteristics, optical characteristics, charge capacity, superconducting qualities, thermal conductivity, corrosion avoidance quality, heat resistance roughness, gas barrier properties, catalytic properties, and refractive index etc (Ghuman, 2020). Nanocomposites are generally, superior to their individual materials, due to synergistic effect. Hence many nanocomposites have been studied for SC electrode materials (Idumah & Materials, 2022). Nanocomposites are generally prepared by mixing different materials by different methods. Composites of transition

metal compounds with carbon nanomaterials have soon promising results for SCs. In such composites carbon materials contributes conductivity and transition metal compounds contributes high capacitance. Presence of carbonaceous compounds in pseudocapacitive material the specific surface area of thus formed nanocomposite increases which increases the capacitance of the nanocomposite. Various forms of nanocomposite are developed for the SCs electrodes like carbon-carbon composites, carbon- metal oxides composites, carbon-conducting polymer composites and MOs-conducting polymer composites. The specific capacitance of such categories of electrodes is found higher than individual carbon, conducting polymers, metal oxides electrodes etc (Ghuman, 2020; Vangari, Pryor, & Jiang, 2013).

1.3.5 Metal-organic framework (MOFs)

Metal-organic frameworks (MOFs) are one of the most advanced crystal materials assembled by organic ligands as linkers and metal ions as center ions, which can be used as excellent materials for batteries and SCs due to their high adjustable pore sizes, controllable structures, and specific surface areas.

Metal-organic framework, abbreviated to MOF, is a coordination polymer (or alternatively Coordination Network) with an open framework containing potential voids. MOFs are self- assembled metal clusters with organic ligands, are well known for their structure, permanent porosity, and tunable properties and have shown great prospect for various applications ("Introduction to Metal–Organic Frameworks," 2012).

Metal ions + Organic units Coordination Polymers or (linkers/bridging ligands) MOF materials

MOFs are structures made up of inorganic nodes, which can either be single ions or clusters of ions and organic linkers. They contain potential voids which can be used for various application.

Some features of MOFs are they have very low density and large voids, they are

crystalline with significant Van Der Waals interaction and complex unit cell. Many potential applications of MOFs depend on the size and nature of the available free volume or pores within the frameworks structure. Tuning of the pores is typically achieved by variation of the metal ions or organic ligands. Also lengthening the organic chains can lead to increased pore size but is often limited by a decrease in stability of the framework (Ahmadi et al., 2021). MOF's surface area normally ranges from 1000 to 10,000 m²/g and pore size can be adjusted as large as 9.8 nm by changing the organic carboxylates, which when linking to metal containing units (like Mg²⁺, Co²⁺, Al³⁺, Ni²⁺) can form 3D structures with notable pore size distributions (Y. Zhao et al., 2016a). The mostly used method for the synthesis of MOFs are hydrothermal and solvothermal processes (Y. Zhao et al., 2016b).

With no gas present, the thermal conductivity decreases with increasing pore size. In the presence of adsorbed gas, MOFs with smaller pores experience reduced thermal conductivity due to phonon scattering introduced by gas-crystal interactions. For larger pores (>1.7nm), the adsorbed gas does not significantly affect thermal conductivity. This difference is due to the decreased probability of gas-crystal collisions in larger pore structures (CHAKRABARTY, 2017).

Due to its distinctive characteristics, including high porosity, nanoscale periodicity, vast surface areas, and structural variety, MOFs have attracted a great deal of interest. Low electrical conductivity is a major drawback of MOFs for energy storage applications. Increase the specific capacitance and overall performance of electrode materials by combining MOFs with other (nano) materials is being carried out more (Shah, Tsapatsis, & Siepmann, 2017). MOFs has its demonstrated history in the field of general electro catalysis, fuel cells and batteries (Vaitsis et al., 2022). MOFs have low conductivity, in order to increase its conductivity MOFs have been entangled with other materials just to increase the charge transfers, they entangled with metal oxides, sulfides and phosphides. And these entangled material (metal oxides, sulfides and phosphides) are got in porous and high conductive form by calcination or pyrolysis of the MOFs (Vaitsis et al., 2022).

In current scenario many toxic organic pollutants like textile dyes, pharmaceutical

contaminants and antibiotics into the water systems and also the emission of the greenhouse gases (CO₂, CH₄) has created many problems. Using sunlight through the photocatalytic techniques these aforesaid problems can be reduced (Hussain et al., 2021). MOFs have found its wide and very important application in the photo catalysis as well (Y. Chen, Wang, Deng, Li, & Technology, 2017). Under the presence of UV rays, MOF is investigated to complete photo catalyst process producing H₂ gas from the water (Shi, Yang, Cao, & Zhao, 2019).

In the mechanism of the photo catalysis, semiconductor (MOFs) mechanism is taken as the catalyst. When the UV or visible light strike on the semiconductor then it produces the photo generated electron. This generated electron is transferred to the conduction band (CB) leaving behind hole in the valence band (VB). Protons of H_2O accept the photo generated electron and then H_2 gas is formed. Also the combination of holes with H_2O molecules forms the oxygen. This mechanism needs a theoretical bandgap energy of 1.23eV (Shi et al., 2019). Photo catalysis equation of hydrogen generation can be clearly understood through these below three equations (Tasleem, Tahir, & Khalifa, 2021).

Transition metal oxide usage Nickel and cobalt-based MOF has discovered that their research into photocatalytic H₂ production is limited because the donor atoms of the linker occupy the active sites in the structure of MOF (Liao, Matsagar, & Wu, 2018). Cobalt is easily available so the use of costly and rarely available materials like Gold (Au), Ruthenium (Ru) and Palladium (Pd) can be replace by Cobalt TMC (Ning et al., 2017). Cobalt based MOF i.e. ZIF-67 is used for the H₂ extraction via photocatalytic effect.

The use of a photosensitizer RuN_3 led to an 86.9 % efficient transport of electrons from excited RuN_3 to ZIF-67. Moreover, due to effective energy transfer from RuN_3 , this RuN_3/ZIF -67 hybrid system demonstrated significantly increased photocatalytic activity for the creation of H_2 from H_2O (S. Yang, Pattengale, Kovrigin, & Huang, 2017).

Due to their high porosity, surface area and good structure controllability MOF's have high preference to produce nanomaterials like porous carbon and metal oxide. These produced nanomaterials are widely used in energy storage applications in fuel cells, SCs and batteries (lithium ion, lithium sulfur, lithium air batteries) (Y. Zhao et al., 2016a). Besides the pure MOFs, derivative of MOFs like porous carbon and nanostructured metal oxide also shows good performance in energy storage and in energy conversion (Xu Zhang et al., 2019a).

A fuel cell is an electrochemical conversion device that runs continuously on an oxidant like oxygen, air or hydrogen peroxide as well as a fuel like hydrogen, natural gas, or methanol. An anode, a cathode, and an electrolyte make up each fuel cell which enable ions to travel between the fuel cell's two sides (Laberty-Robert, Vallé, Pereira, & Sanchez, 2011). Fuel cell also produces electrical energy from the electrochemical oxidation of hydrogen. It is constructed as a stack of identical repeating unit cells with a membrane electrode assembly (MEA) that reduces oxygen gas (O₂) on the MEA cathode and oxidizes hydrogen gas (H₂) on the anode, are pressurized by bi-polar plates that supply the MEA with gaseous reactants and coolants while pulling current from it. Each MEA electrode is linked to a solid polymer ion exchange membrane that transports protons but not electrons, where the electrochemical process occurs. On the surfaces of platinum (Pt)-based catalysts, the cathode oxygen reduction reaction (ORR) and the anode hydrogen oxidation reaction both occur. Pure water and heat are the byproducts (Y. Zhao et al., 2016a).

Fuel cells have zero carbon emissions so they are mostly used in transportation, mostly in buses. Along with this fuel cells are used for backup power supply in residential areas and also in the place where combined heat and power generation are required. Fuel cells are also been used in the portable power source (Abdelkareem et al., 2021).

The desired MOFs product can be developed with rich metal such as transition metal: (Co, Fe, Cu...), nitrogen and carbon sites by carefully selecting metal groups and multi-functional linkers and that would be beneficial for developing high-quality electrochemical catalysts (Y. Zhao et al., 2016a). Cu based MOFs, Fe based MOFs as well as MOF based graphene composite are promising catalyst for fuel cells with high chemical stability, good catalytic activity and methanol tolerance. Hence, for the fuel cells using MOFs as the precursor for preparation of electro catalyst, metal/metal

oxide/nitrogen/carbon hybrids with good catalytic activity can be easily achieved. In summary we can say that best selection of metal clusters and multi-functional linkers, desired MOFs product can be developed with higher transition metal-nitrogen-carbon sites which will be best applicable for fabrication of good electrochemical catalysts (Y. Zhao et al., 2016a).

Like in SCs porous materials are widely used in Lithium ion batteries as well as they have large internal surface area of 100 to 1000 m² g⁻¹ along with high porosity that favors in the electrochemical reaction and interfacial charge transport (F.-S. Ke, Wu, & Deng, 2015). Reason behind using MOFs are MOFs are porous crystalline materials with high surface are of up to 7000 m² g⁻¹, low density and controllable structure. The anode and cathode of Lithium ion battery (LIB) are found that they have low energy density and poor rate performance than expectations. However the SCs have high rate of performance but the energy density is still lower than the LIBs (F.-S. Ke et al., 2015). To overcome this disadvantages batteries are provided with new technique through using MOFs in electrode material synthesis or for better electrochemical reactions. Generally, LIBs are based on two redox reactions at the anode and cathode. While charging lithium ions move from cathode (LiCoO₂) to anode (graphite) via electrolyte (LiPF₆ in organic solvents) (Li Zhang, Wang, Chen, Wang, & Su, 2018).

While the designable components promise the incorporation of electroactive sites, setting new endless possibilities for the search of suitable candidate electrode materials for various battery systems, MOFs' intrinsically porous structure offers convenient electrolyte penetration and ion transportation. However, many MOFs have irreversible structural damage following the charge/discharge operations, weak electrical conductivity, and low tap density, which may limit their practical application (Xinlin Li, Yu, Gosztola, Fry, & Deria, 2019).

1.4 Hydrothermal process

Hydrothermal process is used to synthesize the nanostructures under high pressure

22

and temperature from the aqueous solution. This process is bottom-up process in which the nano- crystal is formed by the combination of molecule by molecule or atom by atom (Xia, 2004). Autoclave material is inert and withstand high temperatures and pressures for prolonged periods of time. A temperature gradient is maintained between the opposite ends of the chamber. At the hotter end the nutrient solute dissolves, while at the cooler end it is deposited on a seed crystal, growing the desired crystal. Advantages of the hydrothermal method over other types of crystal growth include the ability to create crystalline phases which are not stable at the melting point. Also, materials which have a high vapor pressure near their melting points can be grown by the hydrothermal method (Gan, 2022).

1.5 Carbonization

By pyrolysing organic material, typically in an inert atmosphere, solid residues with an increasing concentration of the element carbon are created by the process of carbonization (Marsh & Rodríguez-Reinoso, 2006). Without reacting with oxygen or any other oxidants, pyrolysis is the heat breakdown of a solid (or a liquid) into smaller volatile molecules (Stauffer, Dolan, & Newman, 2008). Generally, carbonization under pressure is divided into three types, i) carbonization under pressure built up by the gases of precursor ii) carbonization under hydrothermal conditions and iii) reduction of CO_2 under pressure (Inagaki, Kang, Toyoda, & Konno, 2014). In our study we have used hydrothermal process for the carbonization.

It is possible to pretreat biomass with a high moisture content using a thermochemical method called hydrothermal carbonization, which can be used for a variety of tasks. It takes place for 5 to 240 minutes in a closed reactor with a temperature range of 180-280 °C and a pressure range of 2-6 MPa. Aqueous phases (rich in nutrients) and gas phases (mostly CO_2) are also produced as byproducts of hydrothermal carbonization in addition to the coal-like substance known as hydro char. This solid product has a higher energy density and can either be burned to produce energy or dumped as fertilizer to feed the soil. The feedstock and processing conditions have an impact on how these products are

distributed. The essential steps in this process' mechanism are polymerization, dehydration, and decarboxylation (Funke and Ziegler, 2010). The wet biomass's high water content makes it a great solvent and reaction medium. Because its ionic product is maximum at temperatures between 200 °C and 280 °C, water can function as both a base and an acid. Additionally, water behaves more like a nonpolar solvent at these temperatures due to a reduction in its dielectric constant (Yoganandham, Sathyamoorthy, & Renuka, 2020). The benefit of hydrothermal carbonization is that biomass can be converted to carbonaceous solids without using an energy-intensive drying process. Compared to the beginning material, the energy-dense hydro char has a higher energy-to-weight ratio. Toxic chemical compounds and lingering micro pollutants are also broken down during the hydrothermal carbonization phase (Weiner et al., 2013).

1.6 Problem Statement

SCs are the energy storage devices that works with both characteristics of a capacitor and a battery as a whole we can say that it acts as the bridge in between the capacitor and battery functioning. SCs can store more energy than a normal capacitor and also supply the energy at higher power rates than batteries. SCs are used as primary power supply energy device with other batteries to provide high power at starting of traction motors, escalators, elevators and vehicles where high torque and high power is used at starting. In order to increase the performance of SCs, their electrodes must be of large surface area and high conductivity. Normally, in market available SCs, their electrodes are made up of highly porous activated carbon (Fierro, 2020).

To increase the efficiency of SC new materials have been searched, so that we can make the electrode of this found material. In our study we have used cobalt oxide intermingled with nitrogen doped carbon as the main material of the electrode. This will study on a different way about the porosity, conductivity, size and structure of the electrode. For fast charging and fast discharging the use of SC is always in first choice. However, these sudden supply and cut off of power will highly power on the equipment on short time but cannot sustain the continuous supply. In traction, automotive and hybrid buses, in order to ignite the high power engine or to start the electric system with high power spikes SC has required best characteristic (Naseri, Farjah, & Ghanbari, 2016). But to run the system/equipment in continuous flow, power is needed most. To overcome this short time power supplies, energy density of the super capacitor need to increase without effecting its power density (Habibzadeh, Hassanalieragh, Soyata, & Sharma, 2017).

To overcome with this process nitrogen doped carbon nanostructure is used with the Cobalt oxide to increase the capacitance, chemical stability and conductivity. After carrying on this process, the nano sponges and hollow voids (after getting MOFs) increases the energy storage capability. Hereinafter the problem of fast discharging will solved out to some extent (Ban et al., 2013).

1.7 Research objectives

General objective

The general objective is to synthesize cobalt oxide/carbon nanocomposite and to study its electrochemical performance for SCs.

Specific objectives

- To synthesize cobalt hydroxide carbonate (CHC) nanostructures on nickel foam by hydrothermal process
- To convert cobalt hydroxide nanostructure into its MOF by solution treatment under different conditions.
- iii) To carbonize the resulting nanostructures then calcinations to get Co_3O_4 nanostructures
- iv) To characterize the material obtained in X-ray diffraction (XRD),
 Scanning electron microscopy (SEM) and Energy Dispersive X-ray
 spectroscopy (EDS)
- v) To test the electrochemical performance of samples

1.8 Rationale

The main purpose of this study has been to carry out the synthesis of electrode made up of cobalt oxide intermingled with nitrogen doped carbon sponges. The study of this kind of electrode will increase the charge adsorption capability of the electrode and also increases the energy density of the electrode. Cobalt oxide with carbon sponge will increase the surface area at the nanoscales making the material more porous so can adsorb more chemical energy from the used electrolyte. And also can supply/discharge the energy for more useful time.

1.9 Scope of this work

This study is mainly focused on the synthesis and development of the cobalt oxide electrode with nitrogen doped carbon sponges on it. Use of renewable energy is on most priority in the recent world's scenario, in this context the SCs with high energy storage capacity has high scope in energy storage developments.

1.10 Limitation

Our study will only be based on the only one plate electrode of the SC, the electrolytes and their chemical reactions and results will not be encountered in our study works. Also the obtained chemical, physical, mechanical, electrical and optical characteristics of the obtained electrode may not be an ideal one. It is the practical study the result may be different than other's studies till the end date of our study. Also the study on separator and dielectrics of the SC will be beyond our study.

CHAPTER TWO: LITERATURE REVIEW

2.1 Research gaps and literature review

The first SC based on a double layer mechanism was developed in 1957 by General Electric using a porous carbon electrode. It was believed that the energy was stored in the carbon pores and it exhibited "exceptionally high capacitance", although the mechanism was unknown at that time (Şahin, Blaabjerg, & Sangwongwanich, 2022). It was the Standard Oil Company, Cleveland (SOHIO) in 1966 that patented a device that stored energy in the double layer interface. SCs are known for over 50 years. SCs exhibit very high degree of reversibility in repetitive charge-discharge cycling. Cycle life over 5,00,000 cycles demonstrated (Ciszewski, Koszorek, Radko, Szatkowski, & Janas, 2019).

Highest efficiency of SC can get by constant current charging, because of the serial and parallel resistance in SC, they will consume electricity when charging. The amount of charging current will affect the charging efficiency (Y. Zhong, Zhang, Li, & Liu, 2006). By constant voltage charging the efficiency of SC will be up to 50%. Many times experiments show that the smaller charging current can lead to higher efficiency (Park & Kim, 2021).

SC design advancements accelerated as the electrification trend began to dominate industrial developments. Global company like General Electric carried out research on SC design enhancements in an effort to cash in on the rising demand for SCs as a crucial facilitator of electrification in various industries. The Standard Oil Company of Ohio (SOHIO) is primarily responsible for the invention, which was initially commercially introduced to the globe by the NEC Corporation (Yadwadkar, 2019) The popularity of the SC technology immediately increased after superconductors were discovered as a more effective energy storage solution. Since they were initially introduced for commercial use, SCs have undergone multiple rounds of design advancement. Research organizations and top power electronics firms are

still concentrating on developing new manufacturing processes and components to raise the performance and cost-effectiveness of SCs (Yadwadkar, 2019). Numerous SCs electrodes materials have been investigated since long ago to get the better featured SCs. Some of the advancement in the SCs development in global market can be discussed as in February 2013, University of California, Los Angeles researchers developed a ground-breaking and affordable fabrication technique to create micro-scale SCs using a LightScribe DVD burner designed for home use. These one-atom-thick layers of graphitic carbon make up the micro-SCs, which are simple to incorporate into small electronic devices. Researchers were able to significantly lower manufacturing costs and broaden the range of applications for SCs by combining a two-dimensional graphene sheet with the new fabrication method (Yadwadkar, 2019). A novel technique for mass producing 3-dimensional mesoporous graphene nano-balls (MGB), which can be used in the production of SCs, was invented by researchers at Ulsan National Institute of Science and Technology (UNIST) in July 2013. The features of mesoporous graphene, according to the researchers, will increase the scalability, quality, and cost-efficiency of SCs, broadening the range of uses for them in electric vehicles. In order to increase SCs' energy density ten times over that of commercial devices, experts at Monash University in Australia created a revolutionary way of synthesizing the graphene inside of them in August 2014. Through a procedure similar to the typical paper manufacturing process, the engineers produced a macroscopic graphene substance. Additionally, they confirmed that the engineers might provide new opportunities for the commercialization of graphene and 10x energy-dense SCs by lowering the solution-based chemical graphite oxide in graphene (Yadwadkar, 2019). In August 2014, a team of researchers in South Korea made an extraordinarily inventive but incredibly useful alternative material for SC electrodes. They came up with a means to turn cigarette filters into a highly effective carbon-based material with high power densities that can be used in SCs. Researchers might effectively store more electrical energy using old cigarette filters than commercially produced carbon (Yadwadkar, 2019). One of the most crucial business strategies of SC manufacturing businesses is the development of SCs appropriate for electric or hybrid automobiles. On the other hand, automakers are competing to release the most effective electric vehicles, which has led to their search

for superior energy storage technologies. This is finally reflected in the continuously increasing automobile industry's expanding potential for SC developments (Yadwadkar, 2019). Tesla Inc., a global powerhouse in the automotive and energy sectors, revealed in February 2019 that it has bought Maxwell Technologies Inc., a pioneer in battery technology, for around US\$ 218 million. With this acquisition, the business hopes to integrate SC knowledge and take advantage of the lucrative potential for electric vehicles. This might speed up car charging times (Yadwadkar, 2019).

Transition metal compounds (TMCs), such as metal oxides, hydroxides, sulfides, and phosphides, have attracted great attention due to their high theoretical capacitance, abundant sources, low cost, etc. (Low et al., 2019). In this case, the studies of TMCbased SCs are rising up due to their obviously enlarged energy densities (approaching 102 Wh kg⁻¹). The energy storage mechanisms of TMC-based electrodes primarily involve the electron transfer in the process of redox reactions and valence state changes of transition metal ions, indicating that the ion diffusion rate and phase transformation due to the change of valence state are important for electrochemical properties (Quan et al., 2018). Such transformation generally leads to the sluggish bulk phase reaction and dramatic volumetric expansion/shrinkage during the energy storage process and finally resulting in the low chemical reaction kinetics and inferior cycle stabilities of TMC-based SCs (Dubey & Guruviah, 2019). Since rapid charge/discharge capability and long cycling stability of minimum 10,000 cycles are key criteria for SCs, the poor electrical conductivity, low power density, unsatisfactory mechanical/electrochemical stability, and some other problems, still limit their prospects of TMCs for large-scaled applications (Y. J. I. T. o. e. c. Cheng, 2009).

Various Transitions Metal Oxides (TMOs) with high electronegativity like IrO_2 , NiO, Fe_2O_3 , SnO_2 , Co_3O_4 , MnO_2 , RuO_2 etc. are used as the electrode of pseudocapacitor (Luo et al., 2014). Out of these all TMOs, RuO_2 shows high theoretical capacitance of about 1358 F g⁻¹, high electrochemical stability and high electrochemical stability of about 300 S cm⁻¹ these properties make RuO_2 as most promising TMO for SC electrode (G. Yu, Xie, Pan, Bao, & Cui, 2013) . Although RuO_2 seems more

31

promising material but due to their toxic nature and also high cost they are not preferred wisely (Deng et al., 2014).

The cobalt oxides have also attracted a lot of interest in recent years due to their affordability, non-toxicity, simplicity of synthesis, and environmental friendliness. Theoretically, the cobalt oxides have high capacitance (CoO: 4.292 F g⁻¹, Co₂O₄: 3.560 F g⁻¹) (H. Cheng et al., 2010; He et al., 2012). Beside this, cobalt oxide exhibits excellent electrochemical behavior in alkaline as well as organic electrolyte. Furthermore, cobalt oxide can interact with the ions of the electrolyte at the surface or internally through the material (Y. Liu et al., 2013). Also by modifying preparative parameters such as reaction temperature, reaction time, solution concentration, complexing agent, etc., cobalt oxide' properties like as shape, structures, and dimension may be easily adjusted (Wei et al., 2015). The material's optimized microstructure and managed morphology will increase its specific surface area and pore size distribution, which will make it easier for electrolyte ions to move through the material (Meher & Rao, 2011). Recent years have seen the successful application of numerous new techniques for the synthesis of materials with meso and microporous nanostructures made of cobalt oxide, including the hydrothermal method (Meher & Rao, 2011), combustion synthesis method (Deng et al., 2014), hydrothermal precipitation method (Z. J. Yu, Dai, & Chen, 2009), chemical bath deposition method (J. Xu, Gao, Cao, Wang, & Chen, 2010) etc.

The transition metal oxides go for continuous faradaic reactions, leading to changes and destruction in the structure as well as phase changing during cycling (charging/discharging). These changes degrade the capacitance of the transition metal oxides. Due to these results concept of MOFs was investigated (Rahul R. Salunkhe, Kaneti, & Yamauchi, 2017). Metal-organic frameworks (MOFs) have had a significant impact on several areas of material science since their discovery in the late 1990s. They have drawn a lot of attention in recent years as starting points or models for the creation of porous metal oxide nanostructures and nanocomposites for use in next-generation supercapacitor applications. It is currently mostly unclear how these materials will play a significant part in the advancement of the supercapacitor industry, despite the fact that they have numerous uses and have undergone extensive structural and synthetic research (Rahul R. Salunkhe et al., 2017). Due to their highly customizable architectures, wide surface areas, and controlled porosity, MOFs have proven to be appealing starting points for the development of porous TMO materials (Kaneti et al., 2017). Because MOFs are composed of metal ion centers coordinated to organic linkers, controlled heating in air can cause the metal ions to oxidize and the release of gaseous CO_2 and NO_2 resulting from the breakdown of organic linkers, which can result in porous TMO nanomaterials during heating (Rahul R. Salunkhe et al., 2017). The form and porosity of the parent MOFs are often retained by the resultant nanoporous oxide materials, which is advantageous for achieving huge surface area.

Various porous TMO nanomaterials, such as cupric oxide (CuO) (T.-T. Li, Qian, & Zheng, 2016), cobalt oxide (Co₃O₄) (Du, He, Lou, & Chen, 2017; Rahul R Salunkhe et al., 2015), cerium oxide (CeO₂) (Zeng, Chen, Chen, Xiong, & Wei, 2016), iron oxide (Fe₂O₃) (X. Xu, Cao, Jeong, & Cho, 2012; Lei Zhang, Wu, Madhavi, Hng, & Lou, 2012), titanium dioxide (TiO₂) (Xiu et al., 2015), magnesium oxide (MgO), manganese oxide (Mn₂O₃) (B. Zhang et al., 2016; Zheng, Xu, Yin, Zhang, & Lu, 2016), nickel oxide (NiO) (Han, Zhang, Shen, Li, & Li, 2017; Kong, Dai, Li, Sun, & Wang, 2015) and zinc oxide (ZnO),(Feng et al., 2017; Kimitsuka, Hosono, Ueno, Zhou, & Fujihara, 2013)

More interestingly, MOFs can be used to generate a variety of mixed metal oxides and metal oxide nanocomposites, including Cr_2O_3 on TiO_2 (W. Zhang et al., 2015), $Co_3O_4/ZnFe_2O_4$ (Hu, Liu, Qu, You, & interfaces, 2015), $Cu/Cu_2O@TiO_2$ (Mondal & Pal, 2016) etc. Therefore, these materials can be created to produce high-performance electrodes for supercapacitors by including numerous functions and high surface area.

CHAPTER THREE: RESEARCH METHODOLOGY

3.1 Methodology

This research is fully based on experimental tests and analysis consisting of qualitative and quantitative data. The methodology adopted in this research work is shown in flowchart below:





Figure 10: Flowchart of the methodology

SC has high uses to store the energy like a battery but with high charging rate than a battery. Similarly, the discharging rate is also very high than the batteries. So in order to increase the energy density new types of materials are in research and development phases to reduce the fast discharging rate. These new types of developed materials are generally used as the electrode material of SCs. In our study also, we tried to overcome this fast discharging problem by using a new type of material- cobalt oxide with coated nitrogen doped carbon sponges. This material have high nano surface area to absorb high chemical energy from the electrolyte.

With high study among all other possible materials we come to cobalt oxide as it shows high capacitance than others and also readily available in environment. After high literature review of our study we chose cobalt oxide as main material of electrode. To carry out experiments we have done our experiment in the research lab of IOE Pulchowk Campus. Chemicals and instruments for this study are provided by the Department of Applied Sciences and Chemical Engineering and by my thesis supervisor. For the experiments besides used chemical we have used furnace, magnetic stirrer, electric motor energized filtration method etc.

3.2 Materials

A Chemical solution was made by taking the following chemicals,

- i) Cobalt nitrate hexahydrate $(Co(NO_3)_2.6H_2O)$
- ii) Ammonium Fluoride (NH₄F)
- iii) Urea (CH₄N₂O)
- iv) A piece of Nickel foam

3.3 Methods

Figure 3 below shows the overall laboratory works methods/process to produce cobalt oxide before the final calcination stage.



Figure 3 Schematic process diagram of lab work

3.4 Synthesis of cobalt hydroxide carbonate (CHC)

The quantity and the material listed under above topic (materials used) were mixed together in 100 ml of distilled water and stirred properly. Then the solution is taken for thermal decomposition in high pressure in a hydrothermal process at 110 ^oC temperature for 5 hours.



(a)

(b)

Figure 4 (a) Autoclave after HTC containing solution (b)Pink colored solution taken after HTC

After then the solution's color turns into pink and then it is stirred on a magnetic stirrer. Washed the solution for multiple times and took out the sediment chemical and nickel foam separately. These two, chemical and nickel foam are kept in furnace at 50 °C temperature for 24 hours to make them dry.

3.5 Synthesis of Metal Organic Framework (MOF)

2% wt/wt concentration of 2-methylimidazole is made in 50 ml distilled water. Thus, 1.5 g of 2-Methylimidazole is taken and mixed with 50ml distilled water. The solution is then stirred in magnetic stirrer. Then after a small cut piece of 0.2291 g of above obtained Nickel foam is taken and mixed in the solution. This mixture is then kept in furnace at 50 °C for 1 hour. Then, the mixture is taken out and the nickel foam, which is acting as inactive material for the chemical reactions, turns into blue in colour with many sponges/small pores on it as seen in these figure below.



Figure 5 Synthesis of MOF on nanowire deposited on nickel foam

Then the taken nickel foam seen in fig above is mixed with 20ml ethyl alcohol and kept it for 24 hours in furnace at a temperature of 50 °C. After this we get the nickel foam with expecting electrode material on it.

3.6 Carbonization and calcination

As prepared MOF on Cobalt Hydroxide Carbonate nanowire deposited on Ni foam was subjected to carbonization in a tube furnace for about 2 h in nitrogen atmosphere at 650 °C. It is then subjected to calcination in a muffle furnace at 300 °C for 1 h to get carbon and nitrogen intermingled cobalt oxide polyhedrons (CN-Co₃O₄ on Ni).

3.7 Electrochemical test

The electrochemical test was carried out versa stat electrochemical work station. As prepared CN-Co₃O₄ @Ni was used as working electrode. Platinum wire was used as counter electrode. Ag/AgCl electrode was used as reference electrode. 3 M aqueous KOH was used as electrolyte. Cyclic voltammetry (CV) test was carried out in between 0.0 to 0.5 V and galvano static charge discharge (GCD) test was carried out between 0.0 to 0.45 V. CV was carried out at different scan rates and GCD was carried out at different current densities.

Specific capacity of faradaic material was calculated with the help of following equation

$$C = \frac{2 * I * \int V \, dt * 1000}{m * V * 60 * 60}$$

where, $C = specific capacity (mA h g^{-1})$

- t = discharging time (s)
- I = discharge current (A)
- V = voltage difference (V)
- m = mass of the electrode material (g)
- $\int V dt$ = integral area under discharge curve

3.8 X Ray Diffraction (XRD) analysis technique

XRD is a non-destructive technique that shows detail information about the crystallographic structure, chemical composition and physical properties of the material. This analysis is based on the constructive interference of monochromatic X-rays and a crystalline sample. As we know x- ray is an electromagnetic radiation having short wavelength which is generated when the electrically charged particle having sufficient is decelerated.

In XRD, the generated X-rays are collimated and directed to a nanomaterial sample, where the interaction of the incident rays with the sample produces a diffracted ray, which is then detected, processed, and counted. The intensity of the diffracted rays scattered at different angles of material are plotted to display a diffraction pattern.

Each phase of the material produces a unique diffraction pattern due to the material's specific chemistry and atomic arrangement. The diffraction pattern is a simple sum of diffraction patterns of each phase. Imperfection in the sample material would affect the pattern of the diffracted signal. In this case, the factors that contribute to the imperfection of the sample would be the composition heterogeneity, crystal structure defects, micro stains and crystallite size.

The peaks of the XRD pattern play a vital role in the identification of the phases as well as the properties of the nanoparticles. In this case, the width of the peak would reveal the average crystalline size of a nanoparticle where sharp peaks indicate a large size of crystallites, whereas broad peaks indicate smaller crystallites. (Pandian Bothi Raja, 2022)

41

3.9 Energy dispersive spectroscopy

The energy dispersive spectroscopy (EDS) technique is mostly used for qualitative analysis of materials but it is also capable to provide semi-quantitative results as well. Generally, the SEM instrumentation is equipped with an EDS system to allow for the chemical analysis of features being observed in SEM monitor. Simultaneous SEM and EDS analysis is advantageous in failure analysis cases where spot analysis becomes extremely crucial in arriving at a valid conclusion. Signals produced in an SEM/EDS system includes secondary and backscattered electrons that are used in image forming for morphological analysis as well as X-rays that are used for identification and quantification of chemicals present at detectable concentrations. The detection limit in EDS depends on sample surface conditions, smoother the surface the lower the detection limit. EDS can detect major and minor elements with concentrations higher than 10 wt % (major) and minor concentrations (concentrations between 1 and 10 wt %). The detection limit for bulk materials is 0.1 wt % therefore EDS cannot detect trace elements (concentrations below 0.01 wt %) (Seifollah Nasrazadani, 2016)

EDS technique is capable of producing elemental distribution maps, an example of which is shown in Figure 8 at result portion of this study where SEM image on the left corner shows patches of Cobalt oxide 3D porous polyhedrons intermingled with nitrogen doped carbon sponges that correspond to Co, O, N and C maps indicated in the dot coloured map images.

3.10 Material characterization

Transmission electron microscopy (TEM; JEOL, JEM-2010 instrument), scanning electron microscopy (SEM; Hitachi S-7400), and field emission scanning electron microscopy (FES-SEM; JEOL, JSM6701F) were applied to record the material morphologies. A Cu-sealed tube ($\lambda = 1.54056$ Å)-equipped Rigaku X-ray diffractometer was used to record the X-ray diffraction (XRD) patterns. X-ray photoelectron spectroscopy was used to determine the chemical composition of the surface (XPS). Three-electrode cell electrochemical tests were conducted in 3 M aquatic KOH. The prepared mat (0.2291 g) served as the working electrode, with platinum wire serving as the counter electrode and Ag/AgCl serving as the reference electrode. From 0.0 to 0.5 V, cyclic voltammetry (CV) was measured. Between 0.0 and 0.45 V, galvanostatic charge discharge (GCD) was measured.

CHAPTER FOUR: RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

Cobalt hydroxide carbonate nanowires were grown on nickel foam hydrothermally. As prepared sample of cobalt hydroxide carbonate (CHC) on Ni foam was observed by scanning electron microscopy (SEM). The SEM image (6a) shows one dimensional (1D) structures uniformly grown on Ni foam. The 1D structures are in nanoscale level. Figure (6b) is the SEM image of the material in which MOF has been grown on 1D structure of CHC. MOFs are polyhedrons and uniformly grown on 1D nanostructures. SEM image (6c) shows the structure of carbon and nitrogen intermingled cobalt oxide polyhedrons (CN-Co₃O₄ @Ni) material after carbonization of MOF developed on 1D structures followed by calcination. There are uniformly grown porous nanostructures. The high porosity is clearly seen in its enlarged image (fig 6d). The high porosity is essential for increasing the surface area as well as effective transport of ions and electrons. Doping of nitrogen in the prepared compound CN-Co₃O₄ @Ni is observed in its elemental mapping (figure 7)



Figure 6 (a) 1D cobalt hydroxide carbonate on Ni foam (b) 1D cobalt hydroxide carbonate with MOF polyhedrons on Ni foam (c) $CN-Co_3O_4$ on Ni and (d) a portion of (c) showing high porosity



Figure 7 Elemental mapping of CN-Co₃O₄ on Ni

Energy dispersive spectroscopy (EDS) of the material shows that the material contains 6.4 % by weight of carbon, 2.5 % by weight of nitrogen, 34.7 % by weight of Oxygen and 56.3 % by weight of Cobalt. It shows that nitrogen is present on the sample. The source of nitrogen is obviously the ligand 2-methylimidazole (Z. Zhao, Kou, & Wu, 2020).



Figure 8 Energy Dispersive X-ray spectroscopy (EDS) of CN-Co₃O₄ on Ni

Table 1 EDS output result

Element	Weight %	Atomic %
СК	6.4	13.9
N K	2.5	4.6
O K	34.7	56.5
Co K	56.3	24.9



Figure 9 XRD pattern of 1D/3D CN-Co₃O₄ on Ni

XRD graph shown above shows that the cobalt oxide formed is crystalline in nature. It is found that there are peaks at 2θ values of 31.30, 19.01,36.84, 65.08 and 59.20 which belongs to (220), (111), (311), (511) and (400) respectively (Mukhiya et al., 2020). This confirms the successful formation of cobalt oxide. The peaks for carbon cannot be seen probably due to high intensity of peaks for cobalt oxide and nickel. However, the carbon content in the prepared material can be seen in its EDS data (figure 8) and table 1 as well as in elemental mapping of figure 7. Also the peaks at 2θ values of Ni are found at values 45, 52.3 and 77.4 (Taghizadeh, 2016).

For SC electrode, the electrochemical performance of the synthesized CN-Co₃O₄ on Ni material was investigated. Against an Ag/AgCl electrode, the material's CV test ranged from 0.0 to 0.5 V (figure 14). At 5 mV s⁻¹, 7 mV s⁻¹, 10 mV s⁻¹, and 20 mV s⁻¹, CV curves were evaluated. Current in the material likewise rises as scan rates are increased. The oxidation and reduction peaks can be seen in the CV curves. These peaks demonstrate the faradaic nature of the charge storage in the CN-Co₃O₄ on Ni material as it has been prepared. The CV curves can be analyzed here below in figure 10.



Figure 10 CV curve of CN-Co₃O₄ on Ni

Galvano static charge discharge (GCD) of as prepared $CN-Co_3O_4$ on Ni material was carried out in between 0.0 to 0.45 V. GCD was carried out at different current densities. Figure 11 represents the GCD curves at different current densities. It shows the specific capacity of the as prepared $CN-Co_3O_4$ on Ni is 155 mA h g⁻¹ at current density of 1 A g⁻¹. At current density of 2 A g⁻¹, the specific capacity decreases to 132 mA h g⁻¹. At current density of 5 A g⁻¹, the specific capacity reached to 83 mA h g⁻¹. This means specific capacity still retains to 46 % when current density is increased to 5 times.



Figure 11 GCD curve of CN-Co₃O₄ on Ni

The energy storing capacity of as prepared CN-Co₃O₄ on Ni material is due to high surface area of the material. MOFs derived materials inherently furnished high surface area and high porosity (Xu Zhang et al., 2019b; Zou & Li, 2018). The highly porous material is suitable for storage and transport of electrolytic ions (W. Li et al., 2021; Yan, Liu, Liu, Yan, & Huang, 2022). Such structures enhance the ionic mobility and the capacitance of the material. The material is carbonaceous and doped with nitrogen. The source of carbon and nitrogen are MOFs. Carbon and nitrogen are responsible for providing the conductivity of the as prepared material CN-Co₃O₄ on Ni .This enhances the conductivity of cobalt oxide nanostructures which has high energy storing capacity (Shinde, Mahadik, Gujar, & Lokhande, 2006). In overall the synergistic effect of carbonaceous material and cobalt oxide nanostructures in a 3D porous morphology is effective and promising for high energy storage capacity for supercapacitor (Dong et al., 2020).

CHAPTER FIVE: CONCLUSIONS

In summary, this research work is focused in the fabrication of metal-organic frameworks (MOFs) based highly porous carbon and nitrogen doped cobalt oxide polyhedrons. For this, cobalt hydroxide carbonate nanowires were uniformly grown on nickel foam by hydrothermal method. MOFs polyhedrons were assembled on nanowires by solution method. Carbon and nitrogen intermingled highly porous three dimensional (3D) cobalt oxide polyhedrons (CN-Co₃O₄ on Ni) was prepared by carbonization and calcination. As prepared CN-Co₃O₄ on Ni was characterized by X-ray diffraction (XRD), scanning electron microscopy (SEM), field emission scanning electron microscopy (FESEM), elemental mapping, energy dispersive spectroscopy (EDS). The electrochemical test of the as prepared CN-Co₃O₄ on Ni material exhibits a specific capacity of 155 mA h g⁻¹ at current density of 1 A g⁻¹. The high energy storing capacity is due to high surface area and porosity of MOF based cobalt oxide nanostructures.

References

- Abdelkareem, M. A., Lootah, M. A., Sayed, E. T., Wilberforce, T., Alawadhi, H., Yousef, B.
 A. A., & Olabi, A. G. (2021). Fuel cells for carbon capture applications. *Sci Total Environ*, 769, 144243. doi:10.1016/j.scitotenv.2020.144243
- Ahmadi, M., Ayyoubzadeh, S. M., Ghorbani-Bidkorbeh, F., Shahhosseini, S., Dadashzadeh, S., Asadian, E., . . . Siavashy, S. J. H. (2021). An investigation of affecting factors on MOF characteristics for biomedical applications: A systematic review. 7(4), e06914.
- Akram, R., Chen, F., Khalid, F., Huang, G., & Irfan, M. J. E. (2021). Heterogeneous effects of energy efficiency and renewable energy on economic growth of BRICS countries: a fixed effect panel quantile regression analysis. 215, 119019.
- An, K. H., Kim, W. S., Park, Y. S., Moon, J. M., Bae, D. J., Lim, S. C., . . . Lee, Y. H. J. A. f.
 m. (2001). Electrochemical properties of high-power supercapacitors using single-walled carbon nanotube electrodes. *11*(5), 387-392.
- Azwar, E., Mahari, W. A. W., Chuah, J. H., Vo, D.-V. N., Ma, N. L., Lam, W. H., & Lam, S. S.
 J. I. J. o. H. E. (2018). Transformation of biomass into carbon nanofiber for supercapacitor application–a review. 43(45), 20811-20821.
- Ban, S., Zhang, J., Zhang, L., Tsay, K., Song, D., & Zou, X. J. E. A. (2013). Charging and discharging electrochemical supercapacitors in the presence of both parallel leakage process and electrochemical decomposition of solvent. 90, 542-549.
- Barik, R., & Ingole, P. P. J. C. O. i. E. (2020). Challenges and prospects of metal sulfide materials for supercapacitors. 21, 327-334.
- Bokhari, S. W., Siddique, A. H., Sherrell, P. C., Yue, X., Karumbaiah, K. M., Wei, S., . . . Gao,
 W. (2020). Advances in graphene-based supercapacitor electrodes. *Energy Reports*, 6, 2768-2784. doi:<u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.egyr.2020.10.001</u>
- CHAKRABARTY, S. (2017). MOF Metal Organic Frameworks: A versatile Class of advanced materials.
- Chen, T., & Dai, L. (2013). Carbon nanomaterials for high-performance supercapacitors. *Materials Today*, *16*(7), 272-280. doi:<u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.mattod.2013.07.002</u>
- Chen, Y., Wang, D., Deng, X., Li, Z. J. C. S., & Technology. (2017). Metal–organic frameworks (MOFs) for photocatalytic CO 2 reduction. 7(21), 4893-4904.

- Cheng, H., Lu, Z. G., Deng, J. Q., Chung, C., Zhang, K., & Li, Y. Y. J. N. R. (2010). A facile method to improve the high rate capability of Co3O4 nanowire array electrodes. *3*(12), 895-901.
- Cheng, Y. J. I. T. o. e. c. (2009). Assessments of energy capacity and energy losses of supercapacitors in fast charging–discharging cycles. 25(1), 253-261.
- Chikri, R., Elhadiri, N., Benchanaa, M. B., & El Maguana, Y. (2020). Efficiency of Sawdust as Low-Cost Adsorbent for Dyes Removal. *Journal of Chemistry*, 2020, 1-17. doi:10.1155/2020/8813420
- Ciszewski, M., Koszorek, A., Radko, T., Szatkowski, P., & Janas, D. J. J. o. E. M. (2019). Review of the selected carbon-based materials for symmetric supercapacitor application. 48(2), 717-744.
- Cui, M., & Meng, X. J. N. A. (2020). Overview of transition metal-based composite materials for supercapacitor electrodes. *2*(12), 5516-5528.
- D Y Su, Z. G. L., L Jiang, J Hao, Z J Zhang, and, J Ma (2019). Conducting Polymers in Supercapacitor Application. *IOP Conference Series: Earth and Environmental Science*, 6.
- Dai, W. L. a. L. (2010). Carbon Nanotube Supercapacitors. doi:10.5772/39444
- Das, T. K., & Prusty, S. (2012). Review on Conducting Polymers and Their Applications. *Polymer-Plastics Technology and Engineering*, 51(14), 1487-1500. doi:10.1080/03602559.2012.710697
- Dědek, I., Kupka, V., Jakubec, P., Šedajová, V., Jayaramulu, K., & Otyepka, M. (2022). Metalorganic framework/conductive polymer hybrid materials for supercapacitors. *Applied Materials Today*, 26, 101387. doi:<u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.apmt.2022.101387</u>
- Deng, J., Kang, L., Bai, G., Li, Y., Li, P., Liu, X., . . . Liang, W. J. E. A. (2014). Solution combustion synthesis of cobalt oxides (Co3O4 and Co3O4/CoO) nanoparticles as supercapacitor electrode materials. *132*, 127-135.
- Dong, B., Xie, J.-Y., Tong, Z., Chi, J.-Q., Zhou, Y.-N., Ma, X., . . . Chai, Y.-M. J. C. J. o. C. (2020). Synergistic effect of metallic nickel and cobalt oxides with nitrogen-doped carbon nanospheres for highly efficient oxygen evolution. 41(11), 1782-1789.
- Du, M., He, D., Lou, Y., & Chen, J. (2017). Porous nanostructured ZnCo2O4 derived from MOF-74: High-performance anode materials for lithium ion batteries. *Journal of Energy Chemistry*, 26(4), 673-680. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jechem.2017.02.001
- Dubey, R., & Guruviah, V. J. I. (2019). Review of carbon-based electrode materials for supercapacitor energy storage. 25(4), 1419-1445.

- Fathi, B., Ashena, M., Bahari, A. R. J. S. P., & Consumption. (2021). Energy, environmental, and economic efficiency in fossil fuel exporting countries: a modified data envelopment analysis approach. 26, 588-596.
- Feng, Y., Lu, H., Gu, X., Qiu, J., Jia, M., Huang, C., . . . Solids, C. o. (2017). ZIF-8 derived porous N-doped ZnO with enhanced visible light-driven photocatalytic activity. 102, 110-114.
- Fierro, J. C.-G. A. C. V. (2020). Energy Storage in Supercapacitors: Focus on Tannin-Derived Carbon Electrodes.
- Fisher, R. A., Watt, M. R., & Jud Ready, W. (2013). Functionalized Carbon Nanotube Supercapacitor Electrodes: A Review on Pseudocapacitive Materials. *ECS Journal of Solid State Science and Technology*, 2(10), M3170-M3177. doi:10.1149/2.017310jss
- Florides, G. A., & Christodoulides, P. J. E. i. (2009). Global warming and carbon dioxide through sciences. *35*(2), 390-401.
- Gan, A. H. J. Z. Y. X. C. M. L. Y. X. (2022). Hydrothermal Synthesis of Nanomaterials. *Journal of Nanomaterials, vol. 2020*, 3.
- Gao, Y., Yue, Q., Gao, B., & Li, A. J. S. o. t. T. E. (2020). Insight into activated carbon from different kinds of chemical activating agents: A review. *746*, 141094.
- Ghuman, B. (2020). Nanocomposites A Review. Journal of Chemistry and Chemical Sciences, 5, 506-510.
- Gómez-Castro, F. I., & Gutiérrez-Antonio, C. (2022). Chapter 1 Biomass: The driver for sustainable development. In F. I. Gómez Castro & C. Gutiérrez-Antonio (Eds.), *Biofuels and Biorefining* (pp. 1-23): Elsevier.
- Goodenough, J. B. J. E. s. m. (2015). Energy storage materials: a perspective. 1, 158-161.
- Habibzadeh, M., Hassanalieragh, M., Soyata, T., & Sharma, G. (2017). Solar/wind hybrid energy harvesting for supercapacitor-based embedded systems. Paper presented at the 2017 IEEE 60th International Midwest Symposium on Circuits and Systems (MWSCAS).
- Haeberlin, A., Zurbuchen, A., Schaerer, J., Wagner, J., Walpen, S., Huber, C., . . . Vogel, R. (2014). Successful pacing using a batteryless sunlight-powered pacemaker. *EP Europace*, 16(10), 1534-1539. doi:10.1093/europace/euu127 %J EP Europace
- Halper, M. S., & Ellenbogen, J. C. J. T. M. C., McLean, Virginia, USA. (2006). Supercapacitors: A brief overview. *1*.
- Han, Y., Zhang, S., Shen, N., Li, D., & Li, X. J. M. L. (2017). MOF-derived porous NiO nanoparticle architecture for high performance supercapacitors. *188*, 1-4.

- Hasan, M. K., Mahmud, M., Ahasan Habib, A. K. M., Motakabber, S. M. A., & Islam, S. (2021). Review of electric vehicle energy storage and management system: Standards, issues, and challenges. *Journal of Energy Storage*, 41, 102940. doi:<u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.est.2021.102940</u>
- He, G., Li, J., Chen, H., Shi, J., Sun, X., Chen, S., & Wang, X. J. M. L. (2012). Hydrothermal preparation of Co3O4@ graphene nanocomposite for supercapacitor with enhanced capacitive performance. 82, 61-63.
- Hu, X.-W., Liu, S., Qu, B.-T., You, X.-Z. J. A. a. m., & interfaces. (2015). Starfish-shaped Co3O4/ZnFe2O4 hollow nanocomposite: synthesis, supercapacity, and magnetic properties. 7(18), 9972-9981.
- Hussain, M. Z., Yang, Z., Huang, Z., Jia, Q., Zhu, Y., & Xia, Y. (2021). Recent Advances in Metal–Organic Frameworks Derived Nanocomposites for Photocatalytic Applications in Energy and Environment. 8(14), 2100625. doi:<u>https://doi.org/10.1002/advs.202100625</u>
- Idumah, C. I. J. P.-P. T., & Materials. (2022). A review on polyaniline and graphene nanocomposites for supercapacitors. 1-37.
- Inagaki, M., Kang, F., Toyoda, M., & Konno, H. (2014). Chapter 4 Carbonization Under Pressure. In M. Inagaki, F. Kang, M. Toyoda, & H. Konno (Eds.), Advanced Materials Science and Engineering of Carbon (pp. 67-85). Boston: Butterworth-Heinemann.
- Introduction to Metal–Organic Frameworks. (2012). *Chemical Reviews*, 112(2), 673-674. doi:10.1021/cr300014x
- Kaneti, Y. V., Tang, J., Salunkhe, R. R., Jiang, X., Yu, A., Wu, K. C.-W., & Yamauchi, Y. (2017). Nanoarchitectured Design of Porous Materials and Nanocomposites from Metal-Organic Frameworks. 29(12), 1604898. doi:<u>https://doi.org/10.1002/adma.201604898</u>

Kar, S. B. K. K. (2020). Conducting Polymers as Electrode Materials for Supercapacitors.

Handbook of Nanocomposite Supercapacitor Materials II.

- Kausar, A. (2017). Overview on conducting polymer in energy storage and energy conversion system. *Journal of Macromolecular Science, Part A*, 54(9), 640-653. doi:10.1080/10601325.2017.1317210
- Ke, F.-S., Wu, Y.-S., & Deng, H. (2015). Metal-organic frameworks for lithium ion batteries and supercapacitors. *Journal of Solid State Chemistry*, 223, 109-121. doi:<u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jssc.2014.07.008</u>

- Ke, Q., & Wang, J. (2016). Graphene-based materials for supercapacitor electrodes A review. Journal of Materiomics, 2(1), 37-54. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jmat.2016.01.001
- Kimitsuka, Y., Hosono, E., Ueno, S., Zhou, H., & Fujihara, S. J. I. C. (2013). Fabrication of porous cubic architecture of ZnO using Zn-terephthalate MOFs with characteristic microstructures. 52(24), 14028-14033.
- Kong, S., Dai, R., Li, H., Sun, W., & Wang, Y. J. A. s. c. (2015). Microwave Hydrothermal Synthesis of Ni-based Metalâ Organic Frameworks and Their Derived Yolkâ Shell NiO for Li-Ion Storage and Supported Ammonia Borane for Hydrogen Desorption.
- Laberty-Robert, C., Vallé, K., Pereira, F., & Sanchez, C. (2011). Design and properties of functional hybrid organic-inorganic membranes for fuel cells. *Chem Soc Rev*, 40(2), 961-1005. doi:10.1039/c0cs00144a
- Laheäär, A., Przygocki, P., Abbas, Q., & Béguin, F. J. E. C. (2015). Appropriate methods for evaluating the efficiency and capacitive behavior of different types of supercapacitors. 60, 21-25.
- Li, T.-T., Qian, J., & Zheng, Y.-Q. J. R. a. (2016). Facile synthesis of porous CuO polyhedron from Cu-based metal organic framework (MOF-199) for electrocatalytic water oxidation. 6(81), 77358-77365.
- Li, W., Zhao, X., Bi, Q., Ma, Q., Han, L., & Tao, K. J. D. T. (2021). Recent advances in metalorganic framework-based electrode materials for supercapacitors.
- Li, X., Elshahawy, A. M., Guan, C., & Wang, J. J. S. (2017). Metal phosphides and phosphates-based electrodes for electrochemical supercapacitors. *13*(39), 1701530.
- Li, X., Yu, J., Gosztola, D. J., Fry, H. C., & Deria, P. J. J. o. t. A. C. S. (2019). Wavelengthdependent energy and charge transfer in MOF: a step toward artificial porous lightharvesting system. *141*(42), 16849-16857.
- Liao, Y.-T., Matsagar, B. M., & Wu, K. C. W. (2018). Metal–Organic Framework (MOF)-Derived Effective Solid Catalysts for Valorization of Lignocellulosic Biomass. ACS Sustainable Chemistry & Engineering, 6(11), 13628-13643. doi:10.1021/acssuschemeng.8b03683
- Liu, R., Zhou, A., Zhang, X., Mu, J., Che, H., Wang, Y., . . . Kou, Z. (2021). Fundamentals, advances and challenges of transition metal compounds-based supercapacitors. *Chemical Engineering Journal*, 412, 128611. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.cej.2021.128611
- Liu, S., Wei, L., & Wang, H. J. A. E. (2020). Review on reliability of supercapacitors in

energy storage applications. 278, 115436.

- Liu, Y., Yan, D., Zhuo, R., Li, S., Wu, Z., Wang, J., . . . Geng, Z. J. J. o. p. s. (2013). Design, hydrothermal synthesis and electrochemical properties of porous birnessite-type manganese dioxide nanosheets on graphene as a hybrid material for supercapacitors. 242, 78-85.
- Logan, B. E., Rossi, R., Baek, G., Shi, L., O'Connor, J., & Peng, W. (2020). Energy Use for Electricity Generation Requires an Assessment More Directly Relevant to Climate Change. ACS Energy Letters, 5(11), 3514-3517. doi:10.1021/acsenergylett.0c02093
- Lokhande, P. E., Chavan, U. S., & Pandey, A. J. E. E. R. (2020). Materials and fabrication methods for electrochemical supercapacitors: overview. *3*(1), 155-186.
- Low, W. H., Khiew, P. S., Lim, S. S., Siong, C. W., Ezeigwe, E. R. J. J. o. A., & Compounds. (2019). Recent development of mixed transition metal oxide and graphene/mixed transition metal oxide based hybrid nanostructures for advanced supercapacitors. 775, 1324-1356.
- Lu, Q., Lattanzi, M. W., Chen, Y., Kou, X., Li, W., Fan, X., . . . Xiao, J. Q. (2011).
 Supercapacitor Electrodes with High-Energy and Power Densities Prepared from Monolithic NiO/Ni Nanocomposites. 50(30), 6847-6850. doi:<u>https://doi.org/10.1002/anie.201101083</u>
- Lu, W., & Dai, L. (2010). Carbon nanotube supercapacitors. In *Carbon nanotubes*: IntechOpen.
- Luo, Y., Zhang, H., Guo, D., Ma, J., Li, Q., Chen, L., & Wang, T. J. E. A. (2014). Porous NiCo2O4-reduced graphene oxide (rGO) composite with superior capacitance retention for supercapacitors. *132*, 332-337.
- Ma, Y., Xie, X., Yang, W., Yu, Z., Sun, X., Zhang, Y., . . . Du, W. (2021). Recent advances in transition metal oxides with different dimensions as electrodes for high-performance supercapacitors. *Advanced Composites and Hybrid Materials*, 4(4), 906-924. doi:10.1007/s42114-021-00358-2
- Månberger, A. (2021). Reduced Use of Fossil Fuels can Reduce Supply of Critical Resources. *Biophysical Economics and Sustainability, 6*(2), 6. doi:10.1007/s41247-021-00088-5
- Maradin, D. J. (2021). Advantages and disadvantages of renewable energy sources utilization.
- Marsh, H., & Rodríguez-Reinoso, F. (2006). CHAPTER 9 Production and Reference Material. In H. Marsh & F. Rodríguez-Reinoso (Eds.), Activated Carbon (pp. 454-508). Oxford: Elsevier Science Ltd.

Meher, S. K., & Rao, G. R. J. T. J. o. P. C. C. (2011). Effect of microwave on the nanowire

morphology, optical, magnetic, and pseudocapacitance behavior of Co3O4. *115*(51), 25543-25556.

- Młyński, D., Operacz, A., & Wałęga, A. J. J. o. C. P. (2020). Sensitivity of methods for calculating environmental flows based on hydrological characteristics of watercourses regarding the hydropower potential of rivers. 250, 119527.
- Mondal, I., & Pal, U. J. P. C. C. P. (2016). Synthesis of MOF templated Cu/CuO@ TiO 2 nanocomposites for synergistic hydrogen production. *18*(6), 4780-4788.
- Mukhiya, T., Ojha, G. P., Dahal, B., Kim, T., Chhetri, K., Lee, M., . . . Kim, H. Y. (2020).
 Designed Assembly of Porous Cobalt Oxide/Carbon Nanotentacles on Electrospun Hollow Carbon Nanofibers Network for Supercapacitor. ACS Applied Energy Materials, 3(4), 3435-3444. doi:10.1021/acsaem.9b02501
- Najib, S., & Erdem, E. J. N. A. (2019). Current progress achieved in novel materials for supercapacitor electrodes: mini review. 1(8), 2817-2827.
- Naseri, F., Farjah, E., & Ghanbari, T. J. I. T. o. V. T. (2016). An efficient regenerative braking system based on battery/supercapacitor for electric, hybrid, and plug-in hybrid electric vehicles with BLDC motor. 66(5), 3724-3738.
- Nejat, P., Jomehzadeh, F., Taheri, M. M., Gohari, M., & Abd. Majid, M. Z. (2015). A global review of energy consumption, CO2 emissions and policy in the residential sector (with an overview of the top ten CO2 emitting countries). *Renewable and Sustainable Energy Reviews*, 43, 843-862. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.rser.2014.11.066
- Ning, L., Liao, S., Liu, X., Yu, L., Zhuang, X., & Tong, X. (2017). Selective transformation of renewable furfural catalyzed by diverse active species derived from 2D co-based metal-organic frameworks. *Journal of Catalysis*, 352, 480-490. doi:<u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jcat.2017.06.017</u>
- Niu, C., Sichel, E. K., Hoch, R., Moy, D., & Tennent, H. J. A. p. l. (1997). High power electrochemical capacitors based on carbon nanotube electrodes. *70*(11), 1480-1482.
- Obreja, V. V. N. (2008). On the performance of supercapacitors with electrodes based on carbon nanotubes and carbon activated material—A review. *Physica E: Lowdimensional Systems and Nanostructures, 40*(7), 2596-2605. doi:<u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.physe.2007.09.044</u>
- Owusu, P. A., & Asumadu-Sarkodie, S. (2016). A review of renewable energy sources, sustainability issues and climate change mitigation. *Cogent Engineering*, *3*(1), 1167990. doi:10.1080/23311916.2016.1167990

Pandian Bothi Raja, M. N. M. I. (2022). Characterization of nanomaterial used in

nanobioremediation. Nano-Bioremediation : Fundamentals and Applications.

- Park, J., & Kim, W. J. A. E. M. (2021). History and perspectives on ultrafast supercapacitors for AC line filtering. 11(27), 2003306.
- Pasquini, L. (2022). Nanostructured Materials for Energy Storage and Conversion. 12(9), 1583.
- Pu, Z., Liu, T., Amiinu, I. S., Cheng, R., Wang, P., Zhang, C., . . . Mu, S. J. A. F. M. (2020). Transition-metal phosphides: activity origin, energy-related electrocatalysis applications, and synthetic strategies. 30(45), 2004009.
- Quan, L., Liu, T., Yi, M., Chen, Q., Cai, D., & Zhan, H. J. E. A. (2018). Construction of hierarchical nickel cobalt selenide complex hollow spheres for pseudocapacitors with enhanced performance. 281, 109-116.
- Reece, R., Lekakou, C., Smith, P. A. J. A. a. m., & interfaces. (2020). A high-performance structural supercapacitor. *12*(23), 25683-25692.
- Riaz, A., Sarker, M. R., Saad, M. H. M., & Mohamed, R. (2021). Review on Comparison of Different Energy Storage Technologies Used in Micro-Energy Harvesting, WSNs, Low-Cost Microelectronic Devices: Challenges and Recommendations. *Sensors* (*Basel*), 21(15). doi:10.3390/s21155041
- RICHARD. (2016). What Are Electrodes & What Do They Do?
- Sadorsky, P. (2014). The Effect of Urbanization and Industrialization on Energy Use in Emerging Economies: Implications for Sustainable Development. American Journal of Economics and Sociology, 73. doi:10.1111/ajes.12072
- Şahin, M. E., Blaabjerg, F., & Sangwongwanich, A. J. E. (2022). A comprehensive review on supercapacitor applications and developments. 15(3), 674.
- Salele Iro, Z. (2016). A Brief Review on Electrode Materials for Supercapacitor. *International Journal of Electrochemical Science*, *11*, 10628-10643. doi:10.20964/2016.12.50
- Salunkhe, R. R., Kaneti, Y. V., & Yamauchi, Y. (2017). Metal–Organic Framework-Derived Nanoporous Metal Oxides toward Supercapacitor Applications: Progress and Prospects. ACS Nano, 11(6), 5293-5308. doi:10.1021/acsnano.7b02796
- Salunkhe, R. R., Tang, J., Kamachi, Y., Nakato, T., Kim, J. H., & Yamauchi, Y. J. A. n. (2015). Asymmetric supercapacitors using 3D nanoporous carbon and cobalt oxide electrodes synthesized from a single metal–organic framework. 9(6), 6288-6296.
- Seifollah Nasrazadani, S. H. (2016). Modern analytical techniques in failure analysis of aerospace, chemical, and oil and gas industries. *Handbook of Materials Failure Analysis with Case Studies from the Oil and Gas Industry*.

- Shah, M. S., Tsapatsis, M., & Siepmann, J. I. J. C. R. (2017). Hydrogen sulfide capture: from absorption in polar liquids to oxide, zeolite, and metal–organic framework adsorbents and membranes. *117*(14), 9755-9803.
- Shi, Y., Yang, A.-F., Cao, C.-S., & Zhao, B. (2019). Applications of MOFs: Recent advances in photocatalytic hydrogen production from water. *Coordination Chemistry Reviews*, 390, 50-75. doi:<u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ccr.2019.03.012</u>
- Shinde, V., Mahadik, S., Gujar, T., & Lokhande, C. J. A. S. S. (2006). Supercapacitive cobalt oxide (Co3O4) thin films by spray pyrolysis. *252*(20), 7487-7492.
- Simanjuntak, J. P., Al-attab, K. A., Daryanto, E., Tambunan, B. H. J. J. o. A. R. i. F. M., & Sciences, T. (2022). Bioenergy as an Alternative Energy Source: Progress and Development to Meet the Energy Mix in Indonesia. 97(1), 85-104.
- Stauffer, E., Dolan, J. A., & Newman, R. (2008). CHAPTER 4 Chemistry and Physics of Fire and Liquid Fuels. In E. Stauffer, J. A. Dolan, & R. Newman (Eds.), *Fire Debris Analysis* (pp. 85-129). Burlington: Academic Press.
- Taghizadeh, F. (2016). The Study of Structural and Magnetic Properties of NiO Nanoparticles. *Optics and Photonics Journal, 06*, 164-169. doi:10.4236/opj.2016.68B027
- Tasleem, S., Tahir, M., & Khalifa, W. A. (2021). Current trends in structural development and modification strategies for metal-organic frameworks (MOFs) towards photocatalytic H2 production: A review. *International Journal of Hydrogen Energy*, 46(27), 14148-14189. doi:<u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijhydene.2021.01.162</u>
- Trahey, L., Brushett, F. R., Balsara, N. P., Ceder, G., Cheng, L., Chiang, Y.-M., . . . Crabtree,
 G. W. (2020). Energy storage emerging: A perspective from the Joint Center for
 Energy Storage Research. *117*(23), 12550-12557. doi:doi:10.1073/pnas.1821672117
- Vaitsis, C., Kanellou, E., Angelara, C., Pandis, P., Argirusis, N., Sourkouni, G., . . . Argirusis,
 C. (2022). MOFs–metal oxides/sulfides/phosphides nanocomposites for supercapacitors. In (pp. 393-412).
- Vangari, M., Pryor, T., & Jiang, L. (2013). Supercapacitors: Review of Materials and Fabrication Methods. *139*(2), 72-79. doi:doi:10.1061/(ASCE)EY.1943-7897.0000102
- Wang, Y., Wu, X., Han, Y., & Li, T. J. J. o. E. S. (2021). Flexible supercapacitor: overview and outlooks. 42, 103053.
- Wei, B., Wang, L., Miao, Q., Yuan, Y., Dong, P., Vajtai, R., & Fei, W. J. C. (2015). Fabrication of manganese oxide/three-dimensional reduced graphene oxide composites as the supercapacitors by a reverse microemulsion method. 85, 249-260.
- What are the Pros and Cons of Renewable Energy. (2021).

- Wu, Z., Zhu, Y., Ji, X., & Banks, C. E. (2016). Transition Metal Oxides as Supercapacitor Materials. In K. I. Ozoemena & S. Chen (Eds.), *Nanomaterials in Advanced Batteries* and Supercapacitors (pp. 317-344). Cham: Springer International Publishing.
- Xiu, Z., Alfaruqi, M. H., Gim, J., Song, J., Kim, S., Thi, T. V., . . . Kim, J. J. C. C. (2015).
 Hierarchical porous anatase TiO 2 derived from a titanium metal–organic framework as a superior anode material for lithium ion batteries. *51*(61), 12274-12277.
- Xu, J., Gao, L., Cao, J., Wang, W., & Chen, Z. J. E. A. (2010). Preparation and electrochemical capacitance of cobalt oxide (Co3O4) nanotubes as supercapacitor material. 56(2), 732-736.
- Xu, X., Cao, R., Jeong, S., & Cho, J. J. N. l. (2012). Spindle-like mesoporous α-Fe2O3 anode material prepared from MOF template for high-rate lithium batteries. 12(9), 4988-4991.
- Yadwadkar, A. (2019). Innovations in Supercapacitor Development: Past, Present, and the Future.
- Yan, J., Liu, T., Liu, X., Yan, Y., & Huang, Y. J. C. C. R. (2022). Metal-organic frameworkbased materials for flexible supercapacitor application. 452, 214300.
- Yang, S., Pattengale, B., Kovrigin, E. L., & Huang, J. (2017). Photoactive Zeolitic Imidazolate Framework as Intrinsic Heterogeneous Catalysts for Light-Driven Hydrogen Generation. ACS Energy Letters, 2(1), 75-80. doi:10.1021/acsenergylett.6b00540
- Yang, Z., Tian, J., Yin, Z., Cui, C., Qian, W., & Wei, F. (2019). Carbon nanotube- and graphene-based nanomaterials and applications in high-voltage supercapacitor: A review. *Carbon*, 141, 467-480. doi:<u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.carbon.2018.10.010</u>
- Yoganandham, S. T., Sathyamoorthy, G., & Renuka, R. R. (2020). Chapter 8 Emerging extraction techniques: Hydrothermal processing. In M. D. Torres, S. Kraan, & H. Dominguez (Eds.), *Sustainable Seaweed Technologies* (pp. 191-205): Elsevier.
- Yu, G., Xie, X., Pan, L., Bao, Z., & Cui, Y. J. N. E. (2013). Hybrid nanostructured materials for high-performance electrochemical capacitors. 2(2), 213-234.
- Yu, Z. J., Dai, Y., & Chen, W. (2009). Synthesis of Co2O4 microspheres by hydrothermalprecipitation for electrochemical supercapacitors. Paper presented at the Advanced Materials Research.
- Zeng, G., Chen, Y., Chen, L., Xiong, P., & Wei, M. J. E. A. (2016). Hierarchical cerium oxide derived from metal-organic frameworks for high performance supercapacitor electrodes. 222, 773-780.

- Zhang, B., Hao, S., Xiao, D., Wu, J., Huang, Y. J. M., & Design. (2016). Templated formation of porous Mn2O3 octahedra from Mn-MIL-100 for lithium-ion battery anode materials. 98, 319-323.
- Zhang, L., Wang, S., Chen, L., Wang, Y. A. O., & Su, J. I. E. (2018). Study on the Charging and Discharging Characteristics of the Lithium-ion Battery Pack. DEStech Transactions on Computer Science and Engineering. doi:10.12783/dtcse/cmsms2018/25231
- Zhang, L., Wu, H. B., Madhavi, S., Hng, H. H., & Lou, X. W. J. J. o. t. A. C. S. (2012). Formation of Fe2O3 microboxes with hierarchical shell structures from metal– organic frameworks and their lithium storage properties. *134*(42), 17388-17391.
- Zhang, W., Liu, Y., Lu, G., Wang, Y., Li, S., Cui, C., . . . Huang, W. J. A. M. (2015). Mesoporous metal–organic frameworks with size-, shape-, and space-distribution-controlled pore structure. 27(18), 2923-2929.
- Zhang, X., Chen, A., Zhong, M., Zhang, Z., Zhang, X., Zhou, Z., & Bu, X.-H. (2019a). Metal–Organic Frameworks (MOFs) and MOF-Derived Materials for Energy Storage and Conversion. *Electrochemical Energy Reviews*, 2(1), 29-104. doi:10.1007/s41918-018-0024-x
- Zhang, X., Chen, A., Zhong, M., Zhang, Z., Zhang, X., Zhou, Z., & Bu, X.-H. J. E. E. R. (2019b). Metal–organic frameworks (MOFs) and MOF-derived materials for energy storage and conversion. 2(1), 29-104.
- Zhang, X., Li, Z., Luo, L., Fan, Y., & Du, Z. J. E. (2022). A review on thermal management of lithium-ion batteries for electric vehicles. *238*, 121652.
- Zhao, H.-r., Guo, S., Fu, L.-w. J. R., & Reviews, S. E. (2014). Review on the costs and benefits of renewable energy power subsidy in China. *37*, 538-549.
- Zhao, Y., Song, Z., Li, X., Sun, Q., Cheng, N., Lawes, S., & Sun, X. (2016a). Metal organic frameworks for energy storage and conversion. *Energy Storage Materials*, 2, 35-62. doi:<u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ensm.2015.11.005</u>
- Zhao, Y., Song, Z., Li, X., Sun, Q., Cheng, N., Lawes, S., & Sun, X. J. E. s. m. (2016b). Metal organic frameworks for energy storage and conversion. *2*, 35-62.
- Zhao, Z., Kou, K., & Wu, H. (2020). 2-Methylimidazole-mediated hierarchical Co3O4/Ndoped carbon/short-carbon-fiber composite as high-performance electromagnetic wave absorber. *Journal of Colloid and Interface Science*, 574, 1-10. doi:<u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jcis.2020.04.037</u>
- Zheng, F., Xu, S., Yin, Z., Zhang, Y., & Lu, L. J. R. a. (2016). Facile synthesis of MOF-

derived Mn 2 O 3 hollow microspheres as anode materials for lithium-ion batteries. 6(96), 93532-93538.

- Zhong, W., Shen, L., Dai, T., Fang, W., Gao, X., & Dong, D. (2017). Global Pattern of the International Fossil Fuel Trade: the Evolution of Communities. *Energy*, 123. doi:10.1016/j.energy.2017.02.033
- Zhong, Y., Zhang, J., Li, G., & Liu, A. (2006). Research on energy efficiency of supercapacitor energy storage system. Paper presented at the 2006 International Conference on Power System Technology.
- Zou, K. Y., & Li, Z. X. J. C. A. E. J. (2018). Controllable Syntheses of MOF-Derived Materials. 24(25), 6506-6518.